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Dear Stakeholders,

The world is moving at a fast pace and so is its demand for energy which in turn has raised a challenge to reduce carbon emissions 
to tackle global warming. The rise in global energy demand and its increasing electrification coupled with global commitments to-
wards addressing climate change, are propelling a shift to renewable energy sources for power generation to effectively balance 
growth with sustainability.

The World has faced a tsunami of sufferings in the Covid-19 pandemic. Societies are in turmoil and economies are in a nose-dive. 
This is indeed much more than a health crisis, it’s a social crisis and an economic crisis, with long-term consequences for livelihoods, 
businesses, and for economies. My heart goes out to those who suffered the loss of loved ones, health, jobs, or financial security. 

It is however essential to restart the economy and help the world move from locking down societies to locking down the virus. 
Your Company withstood a once-in-a-hundred-year pandemic with minimal long-term impact. We demonstrated our resilience 
throughout the COVID-19 disruptions in 2020 and we are growing as a stronger company because of working together through 
these challenges.  

With the focus towards cleaner sources of power and GOI target of 450 GW of RE capacity by 2030, your Company has prepared 
its business plans to tap this opportunity appropriately. The renewable targets of your Company along with the group is 60 GW by 
2032 of which 44 GW is planned in your Company alone. 

This is the first annual report of your company and during the year your company has won 670 MW solar power projects which 
includes 200 MW solar capacity won in the GUVNL tender at a record low tariff of `1.99/kWh, which has set a new benchmark in 
the sector. As on the date of this report, your company has won another 2,165 MW projects taking the total renewable capacity 
portfolio to 2,835 MW. 

Further, your Company has received approval from the MNRE for setting up 4,750 MW RE park in Rann of Kutch, Gujarat Your 
Company is also diving into the newer technologies like the Green Hydrogen and the Energy Storage. Your Company believes that 
Green Hydrogen is going to occupy significant energy space in future. Your Company has initiated development projects as well 
as field demonstration projects for Hydrogen production and an agreement has been signed with Union Territory of Ladakh for 
setting up of country’s first green Hydrogen mobility project in the region.

Your Company is constantly working on improving the capability of its employees and building a strong leadership pipeline. We 
have a great team of emerging leaders and because of their visions, even our competitors admire us. We intend to continue ex-
panding the breadth and scale of our generation portfolio to further cement our position as India’s leading renewable energy 
developer.

If we commit to our core values and become more diverse and inclusive, I believe there is no limit to what we can achieve. The 
world is at an inflection point, and adaptability and continuous improvements will be the key in defining and growing ourselves. 
And we, being one of the largest players in the RE space are well positioned to not only participate in the growth but drive it by 
expanding our impact.

C K Mondol
Chairman, NTPC Renewable Energy Limited

Message from Chairman
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Dear Friends,

We must follow the great law of change, as constancy alone is strange. Indian power sector is undergoing a sig-
nificant change that has redefined the industry outlook. Sustained economic growth continues to drive electricity 
demand in India. The Government of India has identified power sector as a key sector of focus to promote sustained 
industrial growth and has taken various initiatives to boost the sector especially the renewable energy space. 

I am looking at renewables in a big way and we are also using it as a pillar to promote green hydrogen. Green hydro-
gen has huge potential and enormous scope, as it couples with various sectors such as power, mobility, fertilizers, 
steel, chemicals, marine and aviation. Mobility sector itself offers huge scale as far as economical adoption of green 
hydrogen is concerned.

The rapid increase in electricity generation from Renewable sources is a promising step toward decarbonizing the 
electricity sector. Because wind and solar generation are highly intermittent, Energy Storage will likely be key to their 
continued expansion. Low-cost storage could transform the power landscape and the implications are profound.

Going forward, we are looking at green hydrogen and battery storage becoming a big part of our renewable’s 
portfolio.

In the RE space, we are competing in open RE tenders and are vigorously pursuing various government schemes. 
Renewable energy has enough maturity of its own to sustain growth. It is now fairly cost competitive and can make 
its mark in a market scenario. I believe we need to encourage and deepen the green market and look at how we can 
get away from the PPA mode and still grow.

The world is increasingly turning towards decarbonizing the energy systems and we are working towards achieving 
the ambitious targets for renewable energy adoption. Today, I can see a path to a completely emissions-free power 
sector built upon the combination of low-cost renewables with various forms of energy storage.

Our Company has a long path to cover and by taking a future looking approach, we will climb higher and cross new 
frontiers in the renewable space. Thank you for your support and the confidence you have placed in us with your 
valuable investment. 

Mohit Bhargava

CEO, NTPC Renewable Energy Limited

Message from CEO
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Board of Directors
NTPC Renewable Energy Limited

Shri Chandan Kumar Mondol, (aged 58 years), (DIN: 08535016) has taken charge as Director 
(Commercial), NTPC Limited w.e.f. 1st August, 2020. 

Shri Mondol has been with NTPC for over 36 years and has held several key leadership 
positions across multiple business units.

Shri Mondol joined NTPC as 9th Batch Executive Trainee (ET) in 1984. He has vast experience 
and comprehensive knowledge of the power sector and has worked in both power plant and 
corporate functions. He started off his journey with the project execution and commissioning 
of (3X500 MW) units at Ramagundam and (4X210 MW) units at Kahalgaon. 

As a strategic planner, Shri Mondol has led several initiatives at NTPC. In 1998, Shri Mondol joined 
Corporate Commercial where he worked towards developing commercial & marketing strategies, execution of domestic and 
international Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs), formulation of Tariff Regulations with CERC, participation in Ultra Mega Power 
Plant (UMPP) bidding, etc. 

He joined Corporate Planning in 2012 as head of Strategic Planning Division and was also responsible for periodic review 
of Business Plan, Organisational Restructuring, identifying risks of the company and its mitigation through comprehensive 
Enterprise Risk Management Policies etc. Shri Mondol took charge as Business Unit Head (BUH) of Khargone in March 2015 and 
was responsible for execution of 1,320 MW Green Field Power Project involving land acquisition, Right of Use, Right of Way, 
R&R plan, Project Planning & Construction, Boundary Management with the local administration, State Government and other 
statutory authorities. 

Before his appointment as Director (Commercial), he has worked as RED-WR1, RED (DBF & Hydro), ED (PP&M) and ED (Commercial).

Shri Aditya Dar (aged 55 years), (DIN: 08079013) has taken charge as Executive Director 
(Finance), NTPC Ltd w.e.f. June 2021

He holds BSC (Hons) degree in Chemistry from Lucknow University and has completed his 
PGDM (Finance) from MDI, Gurgaon. 

He joined NTPC in 1987 as an executive trainee (Finance) and has over 33 years of experience 
in the areas of investors services, resource mobilization from domestic and international 
markets, long-term financial planning, formulation of capital and O&M budgets and regulatory 
affairs.

Ms. Nandini Sarkar (aged 59 years), (DIN: 08081386) has taken charge as Compliance officer 
& Company Secretary of NTPC Ltd. w.e.f. 01stAugust, 2018

She completed her bachelor’s degree from Lady Shri Ram College for Women. She is a fellow 
member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and a member of Institute of Cost 
Accountants of India.

She joined as Finance Executive Trainee in 1987 and has more than 33 years of experience 
in power sector. She has worked in various areas of NTPC like Finance, Company Law, Listing 
compliances, Board related matters and she has been instrumental in designing the systems 
of Delegation of Power for executives.

Shri Vinay Kumar (aged 58 years), (DIN: 08850467) is in charge as Executive Director-
Engineering Division, NTPC Ltd. 

He joined NTPC Ltd. in 1986, as 11th Batch Executive Trainee. He did his Bachelor of 
Engineering (Mechanical) from BIT Sindri, Ranchi University in 1986. He also did Master of 
Business Administration (Finance) from Sikkim Manipal University in 2009. 

He is having more than 35 years of experience in power sector. His areas of expertise are 
Boiler & Auxiliaries, Turbine Generator and Auxiliaries, Environmental Mitigation Measures & 
Technologies, Flue Gas Desulphurization (FGD), Combustion Optimization, Waste to Energy, 
Gypsum & Ash Utilization, Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Balance of Plant-Coal & Ash handling, 
Water System, Strategizing Raw Material like Coal, Limestone Sourcing etc.
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NTPC Rojmal 50MW Wind Power Plant
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NTPC Renewable Energy Limited 
(A wholly owned subsidiary of NTPC Limited)

(CIN: U40107DL2020GOI371032)
Registered Office: NTPC Bhawan, SCOPE Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi- 110 003

Tel: 011-24360071, Fax: 011-24360241

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 1st Annual General Meeting of the members of NTPC Renewable Energy Limited will be held on 
Wednesday, September 15, 2021 at 11:00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at NTPC Bhawan, SCOPE Complex, 7, Insti-
tutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110 003 to transact the following business:  

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statement of the Company for the period ended March 31, 2021, togeth-
er with the report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.   To appoint a Director in place of Shri Aditya Dar (DIN: 08079013), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for 
re-appointment.

3. To fix the remuneration of Auditors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

 Resolved that Ms. Nandini Sarkar (DIN: 08081386)  who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director 
w.e.f. October 9, 2020, and holds office upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, and is eligible for 
appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing, from NTPC Limited, under the provisions 
of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing candidature of Ms. Nandini Sarkar, for the office of a Director (non-ex-
ecutive part-time), be and is hereby appointed as a Director (non-executive part-time)  of the Company whose period of office 
will be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special Resolution:

 Resolved that pursuant to Section 42 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 (1) of 
the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and any other applicable statutory provisions (including 
any statutory  modification or re-enactments thereof) the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) be and are hereby 
authorized to make offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe to the secured/unsecured, redeemable, taxable/tax-free, cumulative/
non-cumulative, non-convertible debentures (“Bonds”) upto `1500 Crore in one or more tranches/series, through private 
placement, in domestic market for capex, working capital and general corporate purposes, during the period commencing 
from the date of passing of Special Resolution till completion of one year thereof or the date of next Annual General Meeting 
in the financial year 2022-23 whichever is earlier in conformity with rules, regulations, notifications and enactments as may be 
applicable from time to time, subject to the total borrowings of the Company approved by the shareholders under Section 
180(1) (c) of Companies Act, 2013.

 Resolved further that the Board be and is hereby authorized to do or delegate from time to time, all such acts, deeds and 
things as may be deemed necessary to give effect to private placement of such Bonds including but not limited to determining 
the face value, issue price, issue size, tenor, timing, amount, security, coupon/interest rate, yield, listing, allotment and other 
terms and conditions of issue of Bonds as it may, in its absolute discretion, consider necessary.

By order of the Board of Directors
For NTPC Renewable Energy Limited

(SEMANT JUNEJA)
                    Company Secretary
Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 15.09.2021
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Notes:

1. The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to special business to be 
transacted at the meeting is attached hereto.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/
herself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. In order to be effective, the proxy form duly completed, signed 
and properly stamped as per the applicable law should be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 
forty-eight hours before the scheduled time of the Annual General Meeting. Blank proxy form is enclosed.

 
3. Pursuant to Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Auditors of a Government Company shall be appointed or re-ap-

pointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG). Accordingly, C&AG had appointed M/s KLC & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, as the first Auditors of the Company.

 In terms of Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of the first auditor may be fixed by the Board of Direc-
tors of the Company. The Board of Directors had, in its 10th Meeting held on May 24, 2021, inter alia, approved the remuner-
ation of `20,000 plus applicable taxes, as intimated by C&AG, as Audit fee to the first Auditors i.e., M/s KLC & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, Chartered Accountants for the Statutory Audit of accounts of the Company for the period ended March 31, 
2021.

 The appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 is yet to be made by C&AG. The members 
may kindly authorize the Board to fix up an appropriate remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2021-22 after 
taking into consideration the volume of work and prevailing inflation.

4. All documents referred to in accompanying Notice is open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all work-
ing days, except Saturdays and Sundays, between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

5. Route Map to the Venue of Annual General Meeting forms part of this Notice

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No.4

Ms. Nandini Sarkar (DIN: 08081386) was appointed by the Board of Directors w.e.f. October 9, 2020, as an Additional Director. 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Nandini Sarkar, will hold office up to the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice in writing from NTPC Limited, the holding company, under the provi-
sions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, signifying NTPC’s intention to propose candidature of Ms. Nandini Sarkar, for the 
office of a Director (non-executive part-time).

Based on the power conferred upon NTPC Limited, by Article 61 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of Di-
rectors in its 14th Meeting held on August 31, 2021, has recommended the appointment of Ms. Nandini Sarkar, as a Director of 
the Company. The Board considers that her association would be of immense benefit and desires to continue the services and 
guidance of Ms. Nandini Sarkar as a Director (non-executive part-time).

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for appointment of Ms. Nandini Sarkar as a Director (non-executive 
part-time) of the Company whose period of office will be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.

Except Ms. Nandini Sarkar none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives has any concern or interest, financial 
or otherwise in the said resolution.

Item No.5
 
The Company has an ambitious business plan to add renewable energy capacity. The projects of the Company are to be financed 
by debt & equity in the ratio of 80:20. As the Company is under a rapid capacity expansion mode, major portion of capital expen-
diture requirement of the Company has to be funded by debt. The Company intends to borrow in the form of non-convertible 
bonds/debentures, rupee term loans from banks and financial institutions, foreign currency borrowings, foreign currency bonds 
etc. The non-convertible bonds/debentures are intended to be raised by the Company through private placement basis.

In addition to capital expenditure requirement as explained above, Company also needs to borrow for meeting its working capital 
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requirement and other general corporate purpose which may partly be met through issuance of non-convertible bonds.

The provisions of Section 42 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(1) of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securi-
ties) Rules, 2014 require the Company to seek a Special Resolution from its shareholders for raising the NCDs on private placement 
basis. However, in case of offer or invitation for “non-convertible debentures”, it shall be sufficient, if the Company passes a previ-
ous Special Resolution only once in a year for all the offers or invitations for such debentures during the year.

In view of the above, approval of the Shareholders of the Company is being sought to authorize the Board of Directors to make of-
fer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe to the secured/unsecured, redeemable, taxable/tax-free, cumulative/non-cumulative, non-con-
vertible debentures (“Bonds”) upto `1500 Crore in one or more tranches/series, through private placement, in domestic market 
for capex, working capital and general corporate purposes during the period commencing from the date of passing of Special 
Resolution till completion of one year thereof or the date of next Annual General Meeting in the financial year 2022-23 whichever 
is earlier, subject to ceiling approved by the shareholders under Section 180 (1) (c) of Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors of the Company in its Meeting held on July 14, 2021, has approved the proposal and recommends the 
passing of the proposed Special Resolution.

The Directors or key managerial personnel or their relatives do not have concern or interest, financial or otherwise, in passing of 
the said Special Resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors
For NTPC Renewable Energy Limited

              

   (SEMANT JUNEJA)
                  Company Secretary
Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 15.09.2021

Signing of MOU with DVC
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Details of Directors Seeking Appointment/Reappointment

Name Shri Aditya Dar Ms. Nandini Sarkar 

Director Identification 
Number (DIN)

DIN: 08079013 DIN: 08081386

Age 55 years 58 years

Qualification B. Sc. (Hons.), PGDBM Fellow member of the Institute of Company Sec-
retaries and Member of the Institute of Cost Ac-
countants of India.

Experience He has over 30 years of experience in the areas 
of investors services, resource mobilization from 
domestic and international markets, long-term 
financial planning, formulation of capital and 
O&M budgets, and regulatory affairs.

She has more than 31 years of experience in 
power sector. She has worked in various areas 
of NTPC like Finance, Company Law and listing 
compliances, Board related matters and systems 
of Delegation of Power for executives.

Terms and conditions of 
Appointment

Non-executive part-time Non-executive part-time

Remuneration sought to 
be paid

N.A. N.A.

Remuneration last drawn, 
if applicable

N.A. N.A.

Date of First Appointment 
on the Board

October 7, 2020 October 9, 2020

Shareholding 10 Equity Shares* NIL

Relationship with other 
Directors, Managers and 
other KMP

No relation No relation

Number of Board Meet-
ings attended*

7 out of 7 7 out of 7

List of other directorship 1. NTPC Mining Limited  
2. Ratnagiri Gas and Power Private Limited  
3. Energy Efficiency Services Limited

1.NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited
2. Patratu Vidyut Utpadan Nigam Limited 
3. Utility Powertech Limited

Membership/ Chairman-
ship of Committees of 
other Board

  NIL   NIL

* Holding shares as a nominee of NTPC

CMD, NTPC interacting  
with officials of NTPC REL
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NTPC RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED
(A wholly owned subsidiary of NTPC Limited)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To 

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the First Annual 
Report on the working of the Company for the period from 
7 October 2020 (i.e. date of incorporation of the Company) 
to   31 March 2021 together with Audited Financial Statements, 
Auditors’ Report, Review by the Comptroller & Auditor General 
of India and Secretarial Audit Report for the reporting period.

FORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Your Company was incorporated on 7 October 2020, as 
a wholly owned subsidiary company of NTPC Limited with 
the aim to carry on the business of integrated development 
of power generation through non-conventional/renewable 
energy sources.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(` Lakh)

Description 2020-21

Total Income 0.35

Total Expenses 351.31

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (350.96)

Tax expenses 0.09

Profit/(Loss) after Tax (351.05)

DIVIDEND

During the period ended 31 March 2021, Directors have not 
recommended any dividend.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Your Company being newly incorporated, all the projects are 
under development stage.

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposit during the 
period ended on 31 March 2021. The provisions of Sections 
73 to 76 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014 and details of deposit 
required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 
are not applicable.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management Discussion and Analysis is enclosed at Annexure-I.

AUDITORS’ REPORT 

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) appointed 
M/s KLC & Co., Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors 
of your Company for the financial year 2020-21.

The statutory auditors have given unqualified report on 
financial statements of the Company for the period from 7 
October 2020 (i.e. date of incorporation of the Company) to 
31 March 2021. 

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS BY THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR 
GENERAL OF INDIA

The Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India, 
through letter dated 02 June 2021 have communicated that 
based on the financial reporting by the Management and the 
independent audit carried out by Statutory Auditors, C&AG 
has decided not to conduct the Supplementary Audit of the 
Financial Statements of the Company for the period ended 31 
March 2021 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Companies Act, 
2013. A copy of the letter issued by C&AG in this regard is 
placed after report of Statutory Auditors of your Company.               

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed 
M/s Sunpreet Singh & Associates, a firm of company secretaries 
in practice to undertake the secretarial audit of the Company 
for the period starting from the date of incorporation i.e. 7 
October 2020, to March 31, 2021. The report of the secretarial 
auditors is enclosed at Annexure-II.

Secretarial auditors have given unqualified report for the 
period starting from the date of incorporation i.e. 7 October 
2020, to March 31, 2021. 

REPORTING OF FRAUD

The statutory auditors, secretarial auditors and C&AG have 
not reported any instances of fraud committed against the 
Company by its officers or employees as specified under 
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

Your Company is not required to maintain cost accounts and 
records as prescribed under the provisions of section 148 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As per notification dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, the government companies are exempted to 
comply with the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and corresponding rules of Chapter XIII. Your 
Company being a government company is not required to 
include aforesaid information as a part of the Directors’ Report.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

Your Company was incorporated with an Authorized Share 
Capital of `10 Lakh divided into 1 Lakh Equity Shares of `10 
each. Keeping in view the equity capital requirements, the 
shareholders of the Company in Extra-ordinary General 
Meeting held on 13 January 2021, inter alia, approved the 
enhancement of the Authorised Share Capital from `10 Lakh 
divided into 1 Lakh equity shares of `10/- each to `4000 Crore 
divided into 400 Crore equity shares of `10/- each.

Your Company was incorporated with an initial paid-up equity 
share Capital of ̀ 5 Lakh divided into 50 thousand Equity Shares 
of `10 each. The Company, after incorporation till 31 March 
2021, based on the equity requirement has increased the 
subscribed and paid-up equity share capital in the following 
manner: -
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Depository and Registrar and Transfer Agent 

Your Company has a tripartite agreement with National 
Securities Depository Limited, a Depository, and Beetal Financial 
& Computer Services Private Limited, a Registrar and Transfer 
Agent, which enables the Investors to hold securities issued by 
the Company in a dematerialized form.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company has complied with the provisions of all applicable 
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134 (3) (c) and Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures;

(ii) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at 
the end of the financial year 2020-21 and of the loss of the 
company for that period;

(iii) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv)  the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going 
concern basis; and

Your Company after the close of the period ended 31 March 
2021, till the date of signing of this Directors Report, increased 
subscribed and paid-up equity share capital in the following 
manner: -

(Amount in `)

(Amount in `)

Description Increase in subscribed and 
paid-up equity share capital

From To

Right issue  (29,50,00,000 
equity shares of `10)

5,00,000 295,05,00,000

S. No. Name Designation

1. Shri Chandan Kumar Mondol  
(DIN: 08535016)

Chairman

2. Shri Vinay Kumar (DIN: 08850467) Director

3. Shri Aditya Dar (DIN: 08079013) Director

4. Ms. Nandini Sarkar (DIN: 08081386) Director

Name Date of 
appointment 

(2020-21)

Date of 
cessation 
(2020-21)

Ms. Nandini Sarkar1  
(DIN: 08081386)

October 9, 
2020

-

Description Increase in subscribed and 
paid-up equity share capital

From To

Right issue (12,37,43,969 
equity shares of `10)

295,05,00,000 418,79,39,690

Right issue (9,73,80,066 
equity shares of `10)

418,79,39,690 516,17,40,350

(v) the directors had devised proper system to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At present, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises 
of the following:

NTPC Limited (NTPC), the holding company, by virtue of powers 
conferred by Articles of Association of the Company, has 
nominated Directors on the Board of Directors of the Company. 

The changes in Directors during the period ended 31 March 
2021 are as follows:

Ms. Nandini Sarkar holds office up to the date of this Annual 
General Meeting but is eligible for appointment. The Company 
has received a requisite notice in writing from NTPC, proposing 
her candidature for the office of Director liable to retire by 
rotation.

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Shri 
Aditya Dar, Director (DIN: 08079013) shall retire by rotation 
at this Annual General Meeting of your Company and, being 
eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

Number of meetings of the Board

During the period from 7 October 2020 (i.e. date of incorporation 
of the Company) to 31 March 2021, 7 meetings of the Board of 
Directors were held on the following dates:

1Nominated as an Additional Director by NTPC, the holding company.

The details of the number of meetings attended, during period 
from 7 October 2020 (i.e. date of incorporation of the Compa-
ny) to 31 March 2021, by each director are as follows:

Date of Board Meeting Total strength 
of the 

Directors

No. of Directors 
present

October 16, 2020 4 4

November 18, 2020 4 4

December 1, 2020 4 4

January 12, 2021 4 3

February 11, 2021 4 3

February 18, 2021 4 3

March 26, 2021 4 3
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

Your Company after the close of the period ended 31 March 
2021, till the date of signing of this Directors Report appointed 
the following KMP:

Name of the Director Designation Attendance during 
2020-21

Shri Chandan Kumar 
Mondol

Chairman 7 out of 7

Shri Vinay Kumar Director 3 out of 7

Shri Aditya Dar Director 7 out of 7

Ms. Nandini Sarkar Director 7 out of 7

S. No. Name Designation

1. Shri Semant Juneja Company Secretary

Declaration of Independent Director.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its notification dated 
5 July 2017, has exempted wholly owned unlisted public 
subsidiary companies from appointing Independent Directors. 
In view of the aforesaid notification, your Company being the 
wholly owned subsidiary of NTPC is not required to appoint 
Independent Directors. Hence, requirement of the statement on 
declaration by Independent Directors under section 149(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD

As per provisions of the Articles of Association of your 
Company, all part-time Board level appointments are made by 
NTPC, the holding Company. At present Chairman of the Board 
of your Company is functional Director of NTPC and all other 
Board members are senior executives of NTPC. All Directors 
of your Company are governed by the evaluation criteria and 
specifications at NTPC, the holding Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated 13 July 
2017 substituting Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board 
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read with Rule 4, amended vide 
notification dated 5 July 2017, of the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, your Company is not 
required to constitute an Audit Committee under the Companies 
Act, 2013.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company is not required to constitute Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Committee as provided under the provisions 
of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and not 
required to spend, during the period ended 31 March 2021, on 
CSR activities.

In view of the above, during the period ended 31 March 2021, 
the company has not incurred any expenses on CSR activities.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE. 

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated 13 July 
2017 substituting Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board 
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read with Rule 4, amended vide 
notification dated 5 July 2017, of the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, your Company is 
not required to constitute Nomination and Remuneration (NRC) 

Committee under the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
UNDER SECTION 186

Your company has not given any loans or guarantees or made 
any investment covered under the provisions of section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments have taken place 
between the period ended 31 March 2021, to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of this Directors’ Report, 
which affects the financial position of your Company.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

During the period ended 31 March 2021, no significant and 
material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or 
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s 
operations in future.

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the period ended 31 March 2021, no application was 
made, or any proceeding were pending under the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company does not have any Subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies.

ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION.

During the period ended 31 March 2021, your Company has not 
tied up any loan from banks or financial institutions and has not 
done any one-time settlement. Accordingly, clause xii in sub rule 
5 of Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, as amended by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated 24.03.2021 is not 
applicable to your company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As per requirement of Section 92 (3), Section 134 (3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the Annual Return 
in form MGT-9 is given under Annexure-III.

PARTICULAR OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH 
RELATED PARTIES

During the period under review, all transactions with related 
parties were at arm's length and suitable disclosure has been 
provided in annual accounts. All related party transactions 
were in the ordinary course of business and were negotiated 
on an arm's length basis. They were intended to further the 
Company's interests. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related 
Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

During the period ended 31 March 2021, your Company has 
no significant particulars, relating to conservation of energy, 
technology absorption under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

Conservation of Energy:

Your Company is engaged in the business of generation of 
energy using renewable sources and thereby using eco-friendly 
source of generation of energy.

Technology absorption:
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Your Company has an experienced in-house engineering team 
which constantly evaluates the latest technological advancements 
for all our projects, and which provides maximum performance 
for the invested capital. Your Company is also taking business 
development activities by exploring various new emerging energy 
technologies.

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

During the period under review, there were no foreign exchange 
earnings and expenditure in foreign currency.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors of your Company wishes to place on 
record their appreciation for the support and co-operation 
extended by NTPC, the Ministry of Power and the Ministry of New 
and Renewable Energy of Government of India, various State 
Power Utilities, Statutory Auditors, Office of the Comptroller and 

Auditor General of India, Bankers of the Company and untiring 
efforts made by all employees to ensure that the company 
continues to perform and excel.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Chandan Kumar Mondol) 
Chairman 

(DIN: 08535016)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15.09.2021

NTPC Bhadla 260 MW Solar PV Plant
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INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

The world is moving at a fast pace and so is its demand for 
energy which in turn has raised a challenge to reduce carbon 
emissions to tackle global warming. 

In India, the electricity demand over the past 10 years has grown 
at a CAGR of 4.5% with peak demand increasing from 119 GW 
to 184 GW. The total installed capacity in India stood at 382 GW 
at the end of FY2021, a 3.24% increase from the end of FY2020. 

The total installed RE capacity till 31 March 2021 is 94 GW and 
around 50 GW of projects were either under construction or 
had been auctioned. 

One of the major advantages with India is the immense 
renewable energy potential which is largely untapped. Based 
upon availability of land and solar radiation, the solar potential 
in the country has been assessed to be around 750 GW. As 
per TERI Report, about 18,000 km2 water surface can be used 
in India for the installation of FSPV plants in which 280 GW 
Floating Solar Projects can be set up to scale up and replicate 
the success of ground-mounted systems in India.

Considering the huge available potential, Government of India 
(GoI) has set an ambitious target of achieving RE capacity of 450 
GW by 2030.

There is substantial potential for growth in Renewable Energy 
sector as GoI has set an ambitious target of addition of RE 
capacity and there is a policy push towards achieving this. 
On the demand side GoI has introduced policy frameworks 
like RPOs, RECs, waiver of ISTS charges etc. On the supply 
side GoI has made amendments in tariff-based bidding 
guidelines to encourage participation, eased out requirement 
of bank guarantees etc. Further, Government has introduced 
Performance linked incentive scheme for manufacturing of 
solar cells and modules, to make country self-reliant in the most 
important component of solar projects.

Your Company has been participating in bidding process and is 
already executing 820 MW of Solar PV projects as at 31 March 
2021 and also contemplating winning more number of projects 
in coming years.

STRENGTH AND WEAKNESS

Your Company’s strength lies in its association with a strong 
promoter viz. NTPC Limited having a formidable track record 
in power project, engineering, construction, commissioning, 
operation and Maintenance for more than 45 years and also 
has good, formidable network, rapport and credibility with 
the beneficiaries. Further, through its trading arm, it also has 
presence in the power market which is an added advantages 
to your Company.

The Mode 8 scheme for “Development of Ultra-Mega Renewable 
Energy Projects (UMREPP)” was rolled out in June 2020 with 
an objective to facilitate the development of large-scale solar 
project in a plug-and-play model. This is aimed at reducing cost 
and faster implementation of project. Your company has been 

Annexure-I

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

able to get the allocation of land at Gujarat for a 4750 MW 
UMREPP. 

Your company has experienced enthusiastic manpower and 
with zeal to venture into new technologies like Green Hydrogen, 
Green Methanol and Green Ammonia.

As your company has been established recently, more projects 
and time would be required to position itself amongst the 
topmost companies in the Renewable sector.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The role of renewable energy has increased significantly in 
recent times with the growing concern for the country’s energy 
security. The GoI has set a target to achieve 40% electricity 
generation through renewable energy sources by 2030.

Pursuant to the enactment of the Electricity Act 2003, the State 
Electricity Regulatory Commissions (SERCs) are required to fix 
a minimum percentage of the total consumption of electricity 
for purchase of energy from renewable energy sources. RPO 
is enforced on three categories of consumers—(a) Distribution 
Licensees; (b) Open Access Consumers; and (c) Captive 
Consumers. GoI has set an indicative target for respective 
states based on their electricity demand to achieve 175 GW by 
2022. Based on these targets, SERCs have set yearly RPO for the 
obligated entities. This would open up the market for more TBCB 
tenders to be floated on a continuous basis till the achievement 
of the set target of GoI. Your Company being amongst the top 
Renewable Companies winning in the TBCB tenders, this would 
be a great opportunity for your Company. 

Your Company is also looking into the opportunities in 
“Development of Ultra-Mega Renewable Energy Projects 
(UMREPP)” under Mode 8 of MNRE scheme in other states like 
Rajasthan, Maharashtra, Andhra Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, 
Jharkhand/ West Bengal apart from Gujarat. 

Further, the newly established green trading markets in India 
also provide a platform for trading clean electricity.

Looking into the worldwide focus on development of emerging 
technologies like green hydrogen, methanol & ammonia, your 
Company is also taking strides to spearhead the same in our 
country. 

Frequent changes in taxation policy for import of critical 
material related with Renewable Energy sector are resulting 
in the increase in the uncertainties of supplies and the cost.  
Another threat that the sector faced was renegotiating of PPAs 
by certain states. Also, the rulings pertaining to the Great Indian 
Bustard has affected several RE projects being set up in the 
Rajasthan.

Generation of Renewable energy is time specific due to its 
nature of generation, thus has a larger impact on the effective 
utilisation of the transmission infrastructure and balancing of 
the grid. Off late, this aspect is being addressed by bringing 
in more of wind solar Hybrid tenders, usage of Energy Storage 
systems like batteries/ PSP etc. Therefore, your company also 
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has a great opportunity in building its capacities in these areas.

OUTLOOK

Your Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of NTPC Limited 
which is ranked 6th in the country in terms of RE capacities 
under operation and capacities in pipeline and is also playing 
a key role in the Renewable Energy market of the country. 
As a wholly owned subsidiary of NTPC Limited, our priority is 
to effectively penetrate the market and increase in share of 
Renewable Energy capacity addition in the country.

RISKS, CONCERNS AND THEIR MANAGEMENT 

Your company is participating in tenders floated by various 
government agencies and signing Power Purchase Agreement 
(PPA) for sale of power for a prescribed period (typically 25 
years). Of late, though some trends have been witnessed in 
market with regard to the renegotiations/ cancellation of PPAs, 
which poses a significant risk to the developer of the renewable 
energy power project, the regulatory framework of the power 
sector along with the judicial process would enable adequate 
protection to the RE project developers. 

The projects won against competitive bidding have defined 
timelines for their commissioning and with huge penalties 
for delays. Through timely awarding of contracts for project 
execution with back-to-back arrangement, risk of delay in 
executing projects are negligible. Further, all these contracts 
are thoroughly monitored through latest software and also 
reviewed across all levels in the company.  

Your Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of NTPC 
Limited is governed by the framework of Risk Management in 
NTPC. Key risks are regularly monitored through reporting of key 
performance indicators of identified risks.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Your Company has adequate internal control systems and 
procedures in place commensurate with the size and nature of 
its business. Your Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of 
NTPC is governed by the internal control system of NTPC. 

PERFORMANCE DURING THE YEAR

Operations

Being a newly established company, your Company has no 
revenues from generation of power. Currently all the projects 
are under development stage.

Financial Performance 

The financial parameters hereinafter mentioned are for the 
period from 7 October 2020 (i.e. date of incorporation of the 
Company) to 31 March 2021. 

The Company does not have any revenue generation apart from 
interest earned from deposits with banks.

The total operating expenses are as follows:

Other expenses were incurred mainly on account of tender 
expenses and legal expenses towards Registrar of Companies 
fee on increase in the authorized share capital of the Company.

The total expenses including operating expenses of the Company 
are as follows:

During the period ended 31 March 2021, Finance cost were 
towards interest payment and fee paid to credit rating agencies.

Your Company has incurred a loss of `351.05 Lakh. 

Reserves & Surplus

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had a debit balance of ` 
351.05 Lakh in its P&L account.

Current Assets

The current assets as at 31 March 2021 were of `706.34 Lakh, 
mainly towards cash and cash equivalents.

(` Lakh)

(` Lakh)

(` Lakh)

(` Lakh)

(` Lakh)

Description 2020-21

Other income 0.35

Total Income 0.35

Description 2020-21

Employee Benefits expense 54.79

Other expenses 290.39

Total operating expenses 345.18

Description 2020-21

Total operating expenses 345.18

Finance cost 6.13

Total expenses including operating expenses 351.31

Description 2020-21

Profit/(Loss) before tax (350.96)

Tax expenses 0.09

Profit /(Loss) for the year (351.05)

Description 31.3.2021

Cash and cash equivalent 706.34

Total Current Assets 706.34

Description 31.3.2021

Trade Payable 1.73

Other financial liabilities 632.23

Other current liabilities 587.47

Current tax liabilities (Net) 0.09

Total Current Liabilities 1,221.52

Current Liabilities 

As at 31 March 2021, current liabilities were of `1,221.52 Lakh.
(` Lakh)



17

Description 2020-21

Opening Cash and cash equivalents -

Net cash from operating activities 319.35

Net cash from investing activities (29,114.18)

Net cash flow from financing activities 29,501.17

Net Change in Cash and cash equivalents 706.34

Closing cash and cash equivalents 706.34

Description 2020-21

Capital employed in `Lakh 29,153.95

Net worth in ` Lakh 29,153.95

i) Return on Capital Employed (PBT/CE) (in %) (1.20)

ii) Return on net worth (PAT/NW) (in %) (1.20)

Dividend as % of Equity Capital -

Earning per share in `(EPS) before 
exceptional item

(3.48)

Cash Flow Statement

The closing cash and cash equivalents for the period ended 31 
March 2021, is ` 706.34 Lakh.

Financial Indicators

The various performance indicators for the period ended 31 
March 2021 are as under:

(` Lakh)

(` Lakh)

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE.

All the employees of the Company are on secondment basis 
from holding company viz. NTPC. In line with the requirement 
of Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, all the employees are 
regulated under the NTPC’s Policy on Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As on 31 March 2021, there were 12 employees posted on 
secondment basis from holding company viz NTPC Limited. The 
manpower structure/resource of company is reviewed from 
time to time to align it with the requirements of its assignments.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, 
and expectations are “forward-looking” statements within the 
meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may 
vary materially from those expressed or implied. Important 
factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations 
include economic conditions affecting demand/supply and 
price conditions in the markets in which the Company operates, 
changes in Government regulations & policies, tax laws and 
other statutes and incidental factors.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 
(Chandan Kumar Mondol) 

Chairman 
(DIN: 08535016)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15.09.2021

PROCUREMENT FROM MSEs

During the period ended 31 March 2021, no payment has been 
delayed beyond 45 days to any Micro and Small Enterprises 
(MSEs) (including MSEs owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs). 

Honb’le Chief Minister of MP presenting LOA for implementing 325 MW solar project in the state of MP to CEO NTPC REL



18

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 31, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
NTPC Renewable Energy Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by NTPC Renewable Energy Limited (“hereinafter called as the Company/ Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;Not Applicable

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;Not Applicable

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) 
do not apply to the company and consequently the company does not have any records with respect to:  

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding 
the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

Compliances/processes/systems under other laws applicable to the Company are complied by the company as per the 
representation made by the management of the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards, as amended from time to time, issued 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

We report that:

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Annexure-II
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c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of the Company.

d) Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility 
of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

We have checked the compliance management system of the Company, to obtain reasonable assurance about the adequacy of 
systems in place to ensure compliance of specifically applicable laws and this verification was done on test basis. We believe that 
the Audit evidence which we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

We further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all its directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda are sent in 
advance of the meetings and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision was carried through while the dissenting members’ views were captured and recorded as part of the minutes, 
if any.

We further report thatduring the audit period, there were no specific events/actions having a major bearing on the Company’s 
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws.

       for Sunpreet Singh & Associates
       Company Secretaries

 
        (Sunpreet Singh)
                           M.No. F11075
       C.P. No. 16084

Firm Unique Code: S2016DE741838 
UDIN: F011075C000785343

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 14.08.2021

Floating Solar plant at NTPC Simhadri
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Form No. MGT-9
Extract of Annual Return 

as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2021.
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: -

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES –

IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i)  Category-wise Share Holding

Annexure-III

i) CIN : U40107DL2020GOI371032

ii) Registration Date : October7, 2020

iii) Name of the Company : NTPC Renewable Energy Limited

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company : Company Limited by shares

v) Address of the Registered office and contact details : NTPC Bhawan, SCOPE Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi 
Road, New Delhi-110 003, Ph. No. 011-24360071

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No : NO

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, if any

: Beetal Financial and Computer Services (P) Ltd
Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99 Madangir, Behind LSC, New 
Delhi-110062

Sl. No. Name and Description of main products/Services NIC code of the 
Product/service

% to total turnover of 
the company

1. - N.A. -

S. 
No.

Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/
Associate

% of 
shares 
held

Applicable 
Section

1. NTPC Limited NTPC Bhawan, Core 7, 
SCOPE Complex, 7, Institutional Area, 
Lodi Road, New Delhi-110 003

L40101DL1975GOI007966 Holding 100 Section 2 
(46) of the 
Companies Act, 
2013

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year. (i.e. date of 

incorporation October 7, 2020)

No. of shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during the 

year
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a)Individual/ HUF - - - - - - - - -
b)Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

c)State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - - -

d)Bodies Corp. (NTPC 
Limited)

- 49,940 49,940 99.88 29,50,00,000 49,940 29,50,49,940 100 590,708.85

e)Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -
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Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year. (i.e. date of 

incorporation October 7, 2020)

No. of shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during the 

year
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

shares
f)  Any Other(Nominees 
of NTPC)

- 60 60 0.12 - 60 60 - -

Sub-total (A) (1): - - 50,000 50,000 100 29,50,00,000 50,000 29,50,50,000 100 590,708.85
(2) Foreign
a)NRIs- individuals - - - - - - - - -
b)Other-Individuals - - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
e) Any Other…. - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (2):- - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = (A)(1) + 
A(2)

- 50,000 50,000 100 29,50,00,000 50,000 29,50,50,000 100 590,708.85

B. Public Shareholding
1.Institutions
a)Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -
b)Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -
c)Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -
d)State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - - -
e)Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
f)Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -
g)FIIs - - - - - - - - -
h)Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds

- - - - - - - - -

i)Others(specify) - - - - - - - - -
 Sub-total (B) (1):- - - - - - - - - -
2.Non-institutions
a)Bodies Corp.
i) Indian - - - - - - - - -
ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
b)Individuals
i)Individual Shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

- - - - - - - - -

ii) Individuals
shareholders
holding nominal share 
capital in excess of Rs 1 
lakh

- - - - - - - - -

c)Others(specify) - - - - - - - - -
 Sub-total (B) (2):- - - - - - - - - -
Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B) (2)

- - - - - - - - -

C.Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs & 
ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) - 50,000 50,000 100 29,50,00,000 50,000 29,50,50,000 100 590,708.85
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(ii)  Shareholding of Promoters

(iii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl 
No.

Shareholder’s  
Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
(i.e.,date of incorporation October 7, 2020)

Shareholding at the end of the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares Pledged / 
encumbered to total 
shares

No. of 
shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 
company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total shares

% change 
in the 
shareholding 
during the year

1. NTPC Limited 49,940 99.88 - 29,50,49,940 100 - 590,708.85
2. Nominee of NTPC 60 0.12 - 60 - - -

SI 
No.

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
(i.e. date of incorporation October 7, 

2020)

Cumulative shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

At the beginning of the year 50,000 100 50,000 100
29,50,00,000equity shares of `10 
each allotted on March 26,2021

- - 29,50,50,000 100

At the End of the year - - 29,50,50,000 100

SI 
No.

For each of Top 10 shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No. of shares % of total shares of 

the company
No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company
At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease 
in Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / 
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus / sweat equity etc.):

- - - -

At the End of the year (or on the 
date of separation, if separated 
during the year)

- - - -

(v)   Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SI No. For each of the Directors and KMP Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year(i.e. date of incorporation October 

7, 2020)

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

1. Shri Aditya Dar, Director(As Nominee of NTPC Limited)
At the beginning of the year  10 - 10 -
Date wise Increase / Decrease 
in Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase 
/ decrease (e.g. allotment / 
transfer / bonus / sweat equity 
etc.):

No Change No Change No Change No Change

At the End of the year 10 - 10 -
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V.   INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrue but not due for payment

VI.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

B.  Remuneration to other directors:

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year - - - -
i)  Principal Amount - - - -
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i + ii + iii) - - - -
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

•Addition - - - -
Net Change - - - -
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year - - - -
i) Principal amount - - - -
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total ( i + ii + iii) - - - -

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/
Manager

Total 
Amount

1. Gross Salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

- - - - -

2. Stock Option - - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - - -
4. Commission 

- as % of profit 
- others, specify…

- - - - -

5. Others, please specify - - - - -
Total (A) - - - - -
Ceiling as per the Act - - - - -

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 
Amount

1. Independent Directors  
• Fee for attending board committeemeetings  
• Commission  
• Others, please specify

- - - - -

Total (1) - - - - -
2. Other Non-Executive Directors  
• Fee for attending board committee meetings  
• Commission  
• Others, please specify

- - - - -

Total (2) - - - - -
Total (B) = (1 + 2) - - - - -
Total Managerial Remuneration - - - - -
Overall Ceiling as per the Act - - - - -
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Particulars Note
 No.

As at 
31 March 2021

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Capital work-in-progress 2  640.06 
Other non-current assets 3  29,029.07 

Total non-current assets  29,669.13 

Current assets 
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4  706.34 
Total current assets  706.34 

TOTAL ASSETS  30,375.47 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital 5  29,505.00 
Other equity 6  (351.05)

Total equity  29,153.95 

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 7

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises  1.73 

Other financial liabilities 8  632.23 
Other current liabilities 9  587.47 
Current tax liabilities (net) 10  0.09 
Total current liabilities  1,221.52 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  30,375.47 

Significant accounting policies 1  -   
The accompanying notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

NTPC RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: New Delhi

Dated: 24 May, 2021
Digitally signed by signatories

(Vishal Garg)
Head of Finance

(Mohit Bhargava)
Chief Executive Officer

(Aditya Dar)
Director

(DIN 08079013)

 (C K Mondol)
Chairman

(DIN 08535016)

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For  KLC & CO.           
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 002435N   
  
   
(CA. Gaurav Chhabra)   
Partner   
Membership No. 510118  

` Lakh

C.  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

VII.  PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(CHANDAN KUMAR MONDOL)
CHAIRMAN

DIN: 08535016

SI. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

CEO Company 
secretary

CFO Total

1. Gross Salary N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act,1961

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
(c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

2. Stock Option N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
3. Sweat Equity N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
4. Commission- as % of profit - others, specify N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
5. Others, please specify (Leave encashment) N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Total N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Type Section of the 
companies act

Brief 
description

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment / Compounding 

fees imposed

Authority 
(RD / NCLT 
/ COURT)

Appeal made, if 
any (give details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

Signing of MOU with 
Union Territory of Ladakh
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Particulars Note
 No.

As at 
31 March 2021

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Capital work-in-progress 2  640.06 
Other non-current assets 3  29,029.07 

Total non-current assets  29,669.13 

Current assets 
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4  706.34 
Total current assets  706.34 

TOTAL ASSETS  30,375.47 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital 5  29,505.00 
Other equity 6  (351.05)

Total equity  29,153.95 

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 7

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises  1.73 

Other financial liabilities 8  632.23 
Other current liabilities 9  587.47 
Current tax liabilities (net) 10  0.09 
Total current liabilities  1,221.52 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  30,375.47 

Significant accounting policies 1  -   
The accompanying notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

NTPC RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: New Delhi

Dated: 24 May, 2021
Digitally signed by signatories

(Vishal Garg)
Head of Finance

(Mohit Bhargava)
Chief Executive Officer

(Aditya Dar)
Director

(DIN 08079013)

 (C K Mondol)
Chairman

(DIN 08535016)

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For  KLC & CO.           
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 002435N   
  
   
(CA. Gaurav Chhabra)   
Partner   
Membership No. 510118  

` Lakh
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Particulars Note
 No.

For the period 
ended

31 March 2021

Income
Other Income 11  0.35 
Total income  0.35 

Expenses
Employee benefits expense 12  54.79 
Finance Cost 13  6.13 
Other expenses 14  290.39 
Total expenses  351.31 

Profit before tax  (350.96)
Tax expense 19

Current tax
Current year  0.09 

Total tax expense  0.09 
Profit for the year  (351.05)
Other comprehensive income/(expense)  -   
Total comprehensive income for the year  (351.05)

Earnings per equity share (Par value ` 10/- each) 21
Basic & Diluted (`)  (3.48)

Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD
FROM 07 OCTOBER 2020 to 31 MARCH 2021

` Lakh

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Vishal Garg)
Head of Finance

(Mohit Bhargava)
Chief Executive Officer

(Aditya Dar)
Director

(DIN 08079013)

 (C K Mondol)
Chairman

(DIN 08535016)

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For  KLC & CO.           
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 002435N   
  
   
(CA. Gaurav Chhabra)   
Partner   
Membership No. 510118  

NTPC RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

Place: New Delhi

Dated: 24 May, 2021
Digitally signed by signatories



27

25

Particulars For the period 
ended

31 March 2021
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit / ( Loss ) before tax  (350.96)
Adjustment for:
Interest Income on deposits with banks  (0.35)
Interest expense  3.83 
Operating Profit / (Loss) before Working Capital Changes  (347.48)
Adjustment for: 
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables  1.73 
Other financial liabilities  77.63 
Other current liabilities  587.47 
Cash generated from operations  319.35 

Direct Taxes Paid  -   
Net Cash from Operating Activities - A  319.35 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income on deposits with banks  0.35 
Capital work-in-progress  (640.06)
Other Non Current Assets  (29,029.07)
Other Financial Liabilities (for capital expenditure)  554.60 
Net cash flow from Investing Activities - B  (29,114.18)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Equity Contribution received  29,505.00 
Interest Paid  (3.83)
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities - C  29,501.17 
Net Increase/Decrease in Cash & Cash equivalents (A + B + C)  706.34 
Cash & cash equivalents (Opening balance)  -   
Cash & cash equivalents (Closing balance) (see Note (d) below)  706.34 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD
FROM 07 OCTOBER 2020 TO 31 MARCH 2021

` Lakh

Notes:
a) The cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Cash Flow Statements'.
b) Amounts in brackets represents a cash outflow or a loss.
c) Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks and deposits with original maturity of upto three months.
d) Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise of following balance sheet amount as per Note 4:
 Balances with Banks  
 - In current account*  -
 - Deposits with original maturity of upto 3 months   706.34 
 Total   706.34 
 * Balance in current account as at 31.03.2021 is ` 0.73

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Vishal Garg)
Head of Finance

(Mohit Bhargava)
Chief Executive Officer

(Aditya Dar)
Director

(DIN 08079013)

This is the Statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date
For  KLC & CO.          
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 002435N  
   
(CA. Gaurav Chhabra)  
Partner   
Membership No. 510118

 (C K Mondol)
Chairman

(DIN 08535016)

NTPC RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

Place: New Delhi

Dated: 24 May, 2021
Digitally signed by signatories
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Particulars  Amount in ` lacs 
Balance as at the beginning of the period (as at 7 October 2020)  -   
Changes in equity share capital during the year (refer Note 5)  29,505.00 
Balance as at 31 March 2021  29,505.00 

Particulars  Amount in ` lacs 
Balance as at the beginning of the year (as at 7 October 2020)  -   
Profit for the period  (351.05)
Other comprehensive income/(expense)  -   
Total comprehensive income  (351.05)
Balance as at 31 March 2021  (351.05)

The accompanying notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(A) Equity share capital

For the period ended 31 March 2021

(B) Other equity

For the period ended 31 March 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Vishal Garg)
Head of Finance

(Mohit Bhargava)
Chief Executive Officer

(Aditya Dar)
Director

(DIN 08079013)

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For  KLC & CO.          
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 002435N  
   
(CA. Gaurav Chhabra)  
Partner   
Membership No. 510118

 (C K Mondol)
Chairman

(DIN 08535016)

NTPC RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

Place: New Delhi

Dated: 24 May, 2021
Digitally signed by signatories
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NTPC RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED

Note 1.   Company Information and Significant Accounting 
Policies

A. Reporting entity 

 NTPC Renewable Energy Limited (the “Company”) is a 
Company domiciled in India and limited by shares (CIN: 
U40107DL2020GOI371032). The address of the Company’s 
registered office is NTPC Bhawan, SCOPE Complex, 7 
Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003. The 
company is wholly owned subsidiary of NTPC Limited. 
The Company was incorporated on 07 October 2020 and 
these are the first financial statements of the Company for 
the period from 07 October 2020 to 31 March 2021. The 
main objectives of the Company are to carry on business of 
power generation through non-conventional / renewable 
energy sources in all its aspects whether wind, hydro, 
solar, tidal, geothermal, biomass, steam, wave, waste, 
hybrid or any other form.

 B. Basis of preparation

1. Statement of Compliance

 These standalone financial statements are prepared 
on going concern basis following accrual system of 
accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, and 
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013and the provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003 to 
the extent applicable.

 These financial statements were approved for issue by 
the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 24 May 2021

2. Basis of measurement

 The financial statements have been prepared on historical 
cost basis except where otherwise stated.

 Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents 
paid or the fair value of the consideration given to acquire 
assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of 
proceeds received in exchange for the obligation, or at 
the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be 
paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of business. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date.

3. Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees 
which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial 
information presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded 
to the nearest lac (upto two decimal places), except when 
indicated otherwise.

 4. Current and non-current classification

 The Company presents assets and liabilities in 
the balance sheet based on current/non-current 
classification.

 An asset is classified as current when it is:

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or 
consumed in normal operating cycle;

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

• Expected to be realized within twelve months after 
the reporting period; or

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being 
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period.

 All other assets are classified as non-current.

 A liability is classified as current when:

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the 
reporting period; or

• There is no unconditional right to defer settlement 
of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period. 

 All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

 Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current.

 Assets and liabilities are classified between current and 
non-current considering 12 months period as normal 
operating cycle.

C. Significant accounting policies

 A summary of the significant accounting policies applied 
in the preparation of the financial statements are as given 
below. These accounting policies have been applied 
consistently to all periods presented in the financial 
statements. 

 1. Property, plant and equipment

 An item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.

 Items of property, plant and equipment are initially 
recognized at cost. Cost comprises purchase price 
including import duties and non-refundable purchase 
taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any 
cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by management 
and the present value of initial estimate of cost of 
dismantling, removal and restoration.

 2. Capital work-in-progress 

 Cost incurred for property, plant and equipment that 
are not ready for their intended use as on the reporting 
date, is classified under capital work- in-progress. 
Expenses including the borrowing costs attributable 

B. Basis of preparation

1. Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared on 
going concern basis following accrual system of accounting 
and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, and other relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions 
of the Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent applicable.

These financial statements were approved for issue by the 
Board of Directors in its meeting held on 24 May 2021.

4. Current and non-current classification

 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance 
sheet based on current/non-current classification.
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 Preliminary expenses on account of new projects 
incurred prior to approval of feasibility report/
techno economic clearance/winning of project under 
tender based competitive bidding system are charged 
to statement of profit and loss. Net pre-commissioning 
income/expenditure is adjusted directly in the cost of 
related assets and systems.

 9. Income tax

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred 
tax. Current tax expense is recognized in statement of 
profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which 
case it is recognized in OCI or equity, respectively.

 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the 
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect 
of previous years. 

 Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet 
method, on temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities. Deferred tax is measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to be applied to temporary 
differences when they materialize, based on the laws 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate 
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

 Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit 
and loss except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which case it is 
recognized in OCI or equity, respectively.

 A deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the deductible temporary difference can be 
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realized.

 When there is uncertainty regarding income tax 
treatments, the Company assesses whether a 
tax authority is likely to accept an uncertain tax 
treatment. If it concludes that the tax authority is 
unlikely to accept an uncertain tax treatment, the 
effect of the uncertainty on taxable income, tax 
bases and unused tax losses and unused tax credits is 
recognised. The effect of the uncertainty is recognised 
using the method that, in each case, best reflects the 
outcome of the uncertainty: the most likely outcome 
or the expected value. For each case, the Company 
evaluates whether to consider each uncertain tax 
treatment separately, or in conjunction with another 
or several other uncertain tax treatments, based on 
the approach that best prefixes the resolution of 
uncertainty.

 10. Material prior period errors

 Material prior period errors are corrected 
retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts 
for the prior periods presented in which the error 
occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest 
period presented, the opening balances of assets, 
liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, 
are restated.

 11. Earnings per share

 Basic earning per equity share is computed by 
dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the financial year.

 Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by 
dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the 
weighted average number of equity shares that could 
have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.

 12. Statement of cash flows

 Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance 
with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 
‘Statement of cash flows’.

 13. Financial instruments

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another entity. The Company 
recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability only 
when it becomes party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument

13.1 Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

  All financial assets are recognized at fair value on 
initial recognition, except for trade receivables 
which are initially measured at transaction price. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition of financial assets, which are 
not valued at fair value through profit or loss, are 
added to the fair value on initial recognition.

  Subsequent measurement

  Debt instruments at amortized cost  

  A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized 
cost if both the following conditions are met: 

(a) The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets for 
collecting contractual cash flows, and

(b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on 
the principal amount outstanding.
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to the acquisition or construction of qualifying asset, 
directly attributable to construction of property, 
plant and equipment incurred till they are ready for 
their intended use are identified and allocated on a 
systematic basis on the cost of related assets. Deposit 
works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the 
basis of statements of account received from the 
contractors. 

 3. Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction/exploration/ development 
or erection of qualifying assets are capitalized as part 
of cost of such asset until such time the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying 
assets are assets which necessarily take substantial 
period of time to get ready for their intended use or 
sale. 

 When the Company borrows funds specifically 
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the 
borrowing costs incurred are capitalized. When 
Company borrows funds generally and uses them 
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the 
capitalization of the borrowing costs is computed 
based on the weighted average cost of all borrowings 
that are outstanding during the period and used for 
the acquisition, construction/exploration or erection 
of the qualifying asset. However, borrowing costs 
applicable to borrowings made specifically for the 
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, are excluded 
from this calculation, until substantially all the activities 
necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or 
sale are complete. 

 Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when 
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the 
qualifying assets for their intended use are complete. 

 Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense 
in the year in which they are incurred

 4. Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 
comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months 
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value.

 5. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent 
 assets

 A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, 
the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation. 

 The amount recognized as a provision is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at reporting date, taking into 
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. 

 When some or all of the economic benefits required 
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an 
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will 
be received and the amount of the receivable can be 
measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision 
is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of 
reimbursement, if any.

 Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that 
arise from past events and whose existence will only 
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more future events not wholly within the 
control of the Company. Where it is not probable that 
an outflow of economic benefits will be required, 
or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the 
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless 
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is 
remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the 
basis of judgment of the management/independent 
experts. These are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current 
management estimate.

 Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from 
past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Company. Contingent assets are 
disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of 
economic benefits is probable on the basis of judgment 
of management. These are assessed continually to 
ensure that developments are appropriately reflected 
in the financial statements.

 6. Revenue

 Revenue comprising of other income, in the form of 
interest from bank, is recognized, when no significant 
uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists, 
on a time proportion basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

 7. Employee benefits

 The employees of the company are on secondment 
from the holding company. Employee benefits include 
provident fund, pension, gratuity, post-retirement 
medical facilities, compensated absences, long 
service award, economic rehabilitation scheme and 
other terminal benefits. In terms of the arrangement 
with the Parent Company, the Company is to make 
a fixed percentage contribution of the aggregate of 
basic pay and dearness allowance for the period of 
service rendered in the Company. Accordingly, these 
employee benefits are treated as defined contribution 
schemes.

 8. Other expenses

 Expenses on ex-gratia payments under voluntary 
retirement scheme, training & recruitment and 
voluntary community development are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year incurred.
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 Preliminary expenses on account of new projects 
incurred prior to approval of feasibility report/
techno economic clearance/winning of project under 
tender based competitive bidding system are charged 
to statement of profit and loss. Net pre-commissioning 
income/expenditure is adjusted directly in the cost of 
related assets and systems.

 9. Income tax

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred 
tax. Current tax expense is recognized in statement of 
profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which 
case it is recognized in OCI or equity, respectively.

 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the 
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect 
of previous years. 

 Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet 
method, on temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities. Deferred tax is measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to be applied to temporary 
differences when they materialize, based on the laws 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate 
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

 Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit 
and loss except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which case it is 
recognized in OCI or equity, respectively.

 A deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the deductible temporary difference can be 
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realized.

 When there is uncertainty regarding income tax 
treatments, the Company assesses whether a 
tax authority is likely to accept an uncertain tax 
treatment. If it concludes that the tax authority is 
unlikely to accept an uncertain tax treatment, the 
effect of the uncertainty on taxable income, tax 
bases and unused tax losses and unused tax credits is 
recognised. The effect of the uncertainty is recognised 
using the method that, in each case, best reflects the 
outcome of the uncertainty: the most likely outcome 
or the expected value. For each case, the Company 
evaluates whether to consider each uncertain tax 
treatment separately, or in conjunction with another 
or several other uncertain tax treatments, based on 
the approach that best prefixes the resolution of 
uncertainty.

 10. Material prior period errors

 Material prior period errors are corrected 
retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts 
for the prior periods presented in which the error 
occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest 
period presented, the opening balances of assets, 
liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, 
are restated.

 11. Earnings per share

 Basic earning per equity share is computed by 
dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the financial year.

 Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by 
dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the 
weighted average number of equity shares that could 
have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.

 12. Statement of cash flows

 Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance 
with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 
‘Statement of cash flows’.

 13. Financial instruments

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another entity. The Company 
recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability only 
when it becomes party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument

13.1 Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

  All financial assets are recognized at fair value on 
initial recognition, except for trade receivables 
which are initially measured at transaction price. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition of financial assets, which are 
not valued at fair value through profit or loss, are 
added to the fair value on initial recognition.

  Subsequent measurement

  Debt instruments at amortized cost  

  A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized 
cost if both the following conditions are met: 

(a) The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets for 
collecting contractual cash flows, and

(b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on 
the principal amount outstanding.
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  After initial measurement, such financial assets 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance 
income in the statement of profit and loss. The 
losses arising from impairment are recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

  Debt instrument at FVTOCI (Fair value through 
OCI)

  A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if 
both of the following criteria are met:

(a)  The objective of the business model is 
achieved both by collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling the financial assets, and

(b)  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent 
SPPI

  Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI 
category are measured initially as well as at each 
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements 
are recognized in the OCI. However, the Company 
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & 
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the 
statement of profit and loss. On de-recognition 
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity 
to the statement of profit and loss. Interest 
earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is 
reported as interest income using the EIR method.

  Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through 
profit or loss)

  FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. 
Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or 
as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

  In addition, the Company may elect to classify 
a debt instrument, which otherwise meets 
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. 
However, such election is allowed only if 
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement 
or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 
‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments 
included within the FVTPL category are measured 
at fair value with all changes recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss. Interest income 
on such investments is presented under Other 
income. 

De-recognition

  A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part 
of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily de-recognised (i.e., 
removed from the Company’s balance sheet) 
when: 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset have expired, or

• The Company has transferred its rights to 
receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received 
cash flows in full without material delay 
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; and either (a) the Company 
has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

  The difference between the carrying amount 
and the amount of consideration received / 
receivable is recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

  13.2 Financial liabilities

  Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial 
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss and financial liabilities 
at amortised cost, as appropriate. All financial 
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, 
in the case of liabilities measured at amortised 
cost net of directly attributable transaction cost. 

 Subsequent measurement

  The measurement of financial liabilities depends 
on their classification, as described below:

  Financial liabilities at amortized cost

  After initial measurement, such financial liabilities 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognized in statement of profit and loss when 
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through 
the EIR amortization process Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are 
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization 
is included in finance costs in the statement of 
profit and loss. 

  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss

  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through profit or 
loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for 
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term. This category also 
includes derivative financial instruments entered 
into by the Company that are not designated as 
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as 
defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded 
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derivatives are also classified as held for trading 
unless they are designated as effective hedging 
instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

  Financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition at fair value through profit or loss 
are designated at the initial date of recognition, 
and only if the criteria in IndAS 109 are satisfied. 
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value 
gains/losses attributable to changes in own 
credit risk is recognized in OCI. These gains/
losses are not subsequently transferred to profit 
and loss. However, the Company may transfer 
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All 
other changes in fair value of such liability are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

  De-recognition

  A financial liability is derecognized when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the 
terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as the de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

D. Use of estimates and management judgments

 The preparation of financial statements requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that may impact the application of accounting policies and 
the reported value of assets, liabilities, income, expenses 
and related disclosures concerning the items involved as 
well as contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet 
date. The estimates and management’s judgments are 
based on previous experience & other factors considered 
reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 In order to enhance understanding of the financial 
statements, information about significant areas of 
estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognised in the financial statements is as 
under: 

1. Formulation of accounting policies

 The accounting policies are formulated in a manner 
that results in financial statements containing relevant 
and reliable information about the transactions, other 

events and conditions to which they apply. Those 
policies need not be applied when the effect of 
applying them is immaterial.

2. Useful life of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets 

 The estimated useful life of property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets is based on a number 
of factors including the effects of obsolescence, 
demand, competition and other economic factors 
(such as the stability of the industry and known 
technological advances) and the level of maintenance 
expenditures required to obtain the expected future 
cash flows from the asset.

3. Provisions and contingencies

 The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions 
and contingencies have been made in accordance 
with Ind AS 37, - ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and 
contingent assets’. The evaluation of the likelihood 
of the contingent events requires best judgment by 
management regarding the probability of exposure to 
potential loss. Should circumstances change following 
unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could 
alter.

4. Income taxes

 Significant estimates are involved in determining the 
provision for current and deferred tax, including 
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain 
tax positions.
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2. Non-current assets - Capital work-in-progress 

* Brought from expenditure during construction period- Note 15

a) Capital advances are paid to the EPC contractors as per the terms & conditions of the contracts. 

b) Security deposit is given to the depository for dematerialization of Equity shares.

*Balance in Current account as at the close of financial year is ` 0.73  

3. Other non-current assets 

4. Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents 

5. Equity share capital  

Particulars As at 
31 March 2021

Expenditure during construction period *  640.06 

Total  640.06 

Particulars As at 
31 March 2021

Capital advances

(Unsecured, considered good)

Covered by bank guarantee  29,028.97 

Advances other than capital advances

Security deposit  0.10 

Total  29,029.07 

Particulars As at
31 March 2021

Balances with banks

Current accounts *  -   

Deposits with original maturity upto three months (including interest accrued)  706.34 

Total  706.34 

Particulars As at 
31 March 2021

Equity share capital

Authorized

400,00,00,000 shares of par value Rs.10/- each  4,00,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

29,50,50,000 shares of par value Rs. 10/- each  29,505.00 

` Lakh

` Lakh

` Lakh

` Lakh
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a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:   

c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

6. Other equity  

7. Current financial liabilities - Trade payables  

b) Terms and rights attached to equity shares:   

  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value Rs.10/- per share. The holders of the equity shares are 
entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to voting rights proportionate to their share 
holding at the meetings of shareholders.

d) 29,50,50,000 equity shares valuing  ` 29,505 lacs are held by the holding company i.e. NTPC Ltd. and its nominees.

Particulars Number of shares

As at 31 March 2021

At the beginning of the period (as at 7 October 2020)  -   

Issued during the period  29,50,50,000 

Outstanding at the end of the year (as at 31 March 2021)  29,50,50,000 

Particulars As at 
31 March 2021

Retained earnings

Opening balance  -   

Add:  Profit for the Period as per statement of profit and  loss  (351.05)

Total  (351.05)

Particulars As at 31 March 
2021

Trade payable for goods and services

Total outstanding dues of 

- micro and small enterprises -

- creditors other than micro and small enterprises  1.73 

Total  1.73 

Particulars As at 31 March 2021

No. of shares %age holding

- NTPC Ltd (including its nominees)  29,50,50,000 100.00

` Lakh

` Lakh

` Lakh

` Lakh
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8. Current liabilities - Other financial liabilities 

9. Current liabilities - Other current liabilities 

10. Current liabilities - Current Tax liabilities 

11. Other income 

a) Refer note 20 for related party disclosures.  

b)  Amount payable to holding company for capital expenditure is mainly on account of success charges paid by NTPC for 
one the solar projects, being executed by the company.  

a) Refer Note 19 for Disclosure as per Ind AS 12 'Income taxes'

Particulars As at 
31 March 2021

Payable for capital expenditure

To holding company  554.60 

Other payables

To holding company  62.49 

To employees  14.58 

Others (Sodexo)  0.56 

 632.23 

Particulars As at 
31 March 2021

Other payables

Tax deducted at source and other statutory dues  587.47 

 587.47 

Particulars As at 
31 March 2021

Provision for tax  0.09 

Less: Advance tax & tax deducted at source  -   

 0.09 

Particulars For the period 
ended31 March 

2021
Interest from

Deposits with banks (CLTD Interest)  0.35 

 0.35 

` Lakh

` Lakh

` Lakh

` Lakh
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12. Employee benefits expense 

13. Finance costs  

 a)  All the employees of the company are on secondment from NTPC Limited. Pay allowances, perquisites and other benefits 
of the employees are governed by the terms and conditions under an agreement with NTPC Ltd. As per the agreement, 
amount equivalent to a fixed percentage of basic & DA of the seconded employees is payable by the company for 
employee benefits such as provident fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement medical facilities, compensated absences, 
long service award, economic rehabilitation scheme and other terminal benefits.  

 b)  An amount of Rs.16.00 lacs towards provident fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement medical facilities & other terminal 
benefits and Rs.5.99 lacs towards leave & other benefits are paid / payable to the holding company and are included 
under Employee benefits.  

 c)  Employee benefits expense, directly attributable to construction activities, has been transferred to expenditure during 
construction period.

 a) Refer note 20 for related party disclosures.  

Particulars For the period 
ended

31 March 2021
Salaries and wages  93.13 

Contribution to provident and other funds  21.99 

Staff welfare expenses  2.13 

 117.25 

Less: Transferred to expenditure during construction period- Note 15  62.46 

Total  54.79 

Particulars For the period 
ended

31 March 2021
Interest paid

On Short Term Loan from Holding company  3.83 

Other borrowing costs

Credit Rating Fees  2.30 

Total  6.13 

` Lakh

` Lakh
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14. Other expenses 

 a)  Tender expenses, professional charges & bank charges incurred after winning of project capacity have been transferred 
to expenditure during construction.  

 b)  Communication, travelling, entertainment expenses incurred by employees involved in construction activities have been 
transferred to expenditure during construction.  

Particulars For the period 
ended31 March 

2021
Communication expenses  2.09 

Travelling expenses  2.61 

EDP Stationary  0.04 

Tender expenses

Bid processing charges  10.05 

Success fees  554.60 

Payment to auditors - Audit Fees  0.24 

Entertainment expenses  0.83 

Professional charges and consultancy fee  10.11 

Legal Expenses

ROC Expenses  274.66 

Other legal Expenses  0.07 

Printing and stationery  0.18 

Bank Charges

Commission for Performance Bank Guarantees  11.64 

Others  0.36 

Books & Periodicals  0.03 

Office Attendants expenses  0.48 

 867.99 

Less:  Transferred to expenditure during construction period - Note 15  577.60 

Total  290.39 

` Lakh
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15. Expenditure during construction period

 Expenses carried to capital work-in-progress in Note 2 as follows:   

 a) Employee benefits expense, directly attributable to construction activities.   

 b) Tender expenses, professional charges and bank charges incurred after winning of project capacity.

 c) Communication, travelling, entertainment expenses incurred by employees involved in construction activities.  

Other Notes to Financial Statements    

16 COVID-19 disclosure 

  Due to outbreak of COVID-19 globally and in India, the Company's management has made initial assessment of likely impact on 
business and financial risks, and believes there is no adverse impact on the Company. The management does not see any risks 
in the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process considering 
the uncertainty involved thereon. The company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to the future economic 
conditions.

17 a)  The company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and other parties. There are no 
unconfirmed balances in respect of bank accounts. As this is the first year of operation, the payables are mainly on 
account of statutory dues and towards employees & holding company.  

 b)  In the opinion of the management, the value of assets, other than property, plant and equipment and non-current 
investments, on realisation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less than the value at which these are stated in 
the Balance Sheet.  

18  Disclosure as per Ind AS 1 'Presentation of financial statements'   

 a)  Significant accounting policies:  

   The company is incorporated in the current financial year on 07 October 2020 as a wholly owned subsidiary of NTPC 
Limited under the Companies Act 2013. These are the first financial statements of the company. The relevant accounting 
policies have been disclosed in Note 1.  

Particulars As at 31 March 2021

A. Employee benefits expense

     Salaries and wages  49.13 

     Contribution to provident and other funds  11.52 

     Staff welfare expenses  1.81 

Total (A)  62.46 

B. Other expenses

     Communication expenses  1.50 

     Travelling expenses  1.29 

     Tender expenses - Success fees  554.60 

     Entertainment expenses  0.33 

     Professional charges and consultancy fee  8.24 

     Bank Charges  11.64 

Total (B)  577.60 

Grand total (A+B)  640.06 

` Lakh
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19 Disclosure as per Ind AS 12 'Income taxes'   

 Income tax expense - Income tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss  

20 Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures'   

 A List of Related Parties  

 i)  Holding Company  

 M/s NTPC Ltd 

 ii)  Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) :  

Particulars For the period 
ended

31 March 2021
Current tax expense

Provision for Income Tax on Interest income of ` 34,998/-  @ 25.168% (22% + SC + Cess) u/s 115BAB  0.09 

Total  0.09 

1 Shri C K Mondol, Chairman wef 07.10.2020

2 Shri Vinay Kumar, Director wef 07.10.2020

3 Shri Aditya Dar, Director wef 07.10.2020

4 Ms Nandini Sarkar, Director wef 09.10.2020

5 Shri Mohit Bhargava, CEO wef 09.10.2020

` Lakh

` Lakh

 b) Period of accounting:  

   As the company is incorporated on 07 October 2020, the financial statements have been prepared for the period starting 
from 07 October 2020 and ending on 31 March 2021. Being the first year of operation, there are no comparative figures 
available for previous accounting period.  

 c) Currency and Amount of presentation:  

   Amount in the financial statements are presented in ` lacs (upto two decimals) except for per share data and as other-
wise stated. Certain amounts, which do not appear due to rounding off, are disclosed separately.  

 a)  In pursuance to Section 115BAB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 announced by Government of India through Taxation Laws 
(Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, the domestic company has an option of lower tax rate of 15% subject to compliance 
of prescribed conditions, provided that where the total income of the person, includes any income, which has neither 
been derived from nor is incidental to manufacturing or production of an article or thing and in respect of which no 
specific rate of tax has been provided separately under this Chapter, such income shall be taxed at the rate of 22% and 
no deduction or allowance in respect of any expenditure or allowance shall be allowed in computing such income.

 b)  In exercise of option for lower tax rate, the taxes on income have been recognised as per the provisions of section 
115BAB.  

iii) Entities under the control of the same government: 

   The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of a Central Public Sector Undertaking (CPSU) in which majority of shares are 
held by Central Government (refer Note 5). Pursuant to Paragraph 25 & 26 of Ind AS 24, entities over which the same 
government has control or joint control of, or significant influence over, then both the reporting entity and other entities 
shall be regarded as related parties. The company has availed the exemption available for government related entities 
and limited disclosures are required to be made in the financial statements. Such entities with which the Company 
has significant transactions include but are not limited to Solar Energy Corporation of India Limited, Damodar Valley 
Corporation, etc.  
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B Transactions with related parties during the year are as follows :  

C Outstanding balances with related parties are as follows:

D Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties  

 (i) Transactions with the related parties are made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.

 (iii)  NTPC Limited is seconding its personnel to the company as per the terms and conditions agreed between the companies, 
which are similar to those applicable for secondment of employees to other companies and institutions. The cost incurred 
by NTPC Limited towards superannuation and employee benefits are recovered from the company.

21 Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 'Earnings Per Share'   

 The elements considered for calculation of Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) are as under:

Particulars For the period 
ended

31 March 2021
(i) Transaction with parent company NTPC Limited

Equity contribution received  29,505.00 

Equity shares issued  29,505.00 

Short term loan received  345.00 

Repayment of short term loan & interest thereon  348.83 

Particulars As at 31 March 2021

Amount payable to parent company- NTPC Ltd  617.09 

Particulars Unit For the period 
ended

31 March 2021
Net Profit after Tax used as numerator     ( Amount in ` )  (3,51,05,000.00)

Face value per share ( Amount in ` ) 10.00

Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator  Nos.  1,00,94,887 

Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) ( Amount in ` )  (3.48)

` Lakh

` Lakh

` Lakh

22 Disclosure as per Ind AS 36 'Impairment of Assets'   

  There are no external / internal indicators which leads to any impairment of assets of the company as required by Ind AS 36 
'Impairment of Assets'.   

23 Disclosure as per Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' 

 There are no provisions, contingent liabilities or contingent assets as at 31 March 2021 for disclosure under Ind AS 37. 

24 Capital Commitments 

  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (property, plant and equipment) and not provided 
for as at 31 March 2021 is Rs. 2,22,438.00 lacs.   

25 Disclosure as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments'   

  The Board of Directors is collectively the company's 'Chief Operating Decision Maker' or 'CODM' within the meaning of Ind AS 108

 As on date, the company has no reportable segments as per the CODM of the company.   

26 Financial risk management   

  The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise payables for capital expenditure and other capital commitments for 
which company is in the process tying up loans in domestic currency. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to 
finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash at bank and deposits with bank.
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 Risk management framework   

  The Company’s activities makes it susceptible to various risks. The Company has taken adequate measures to address such 
concerns by developing adequate systems and practices.  The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the 
unpredictability of markets and seeks to manage the impact of these risks on the Company’s financial performance.

  The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management 
framework. The Board perform within the overall risk framework of the parent company.   

 The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
 - Market risk
 - Credit risk
 - Liquidity risk   

 a) Market risk   

   Market risk is the risk of fluctuations in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates that will affect 
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  The objective of market risk management is 
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The Board of 
directors is responsible for setting up of policies and procedures to manage market risks of the company.

  Interest rate risk - The company would manage interest rate risk through different kinds of loan arrangements (e.g. fixed 
rate loans, floating rate loans, rupee term loans, foreign currency loans, etc.)   

Currency rate risk - The Company executes agreements for the purpose of purchase of capital goods in INR. Any change 
in foreign currency exchange rate is to the account of the contractor. Hence, there would be no impact of strengthening 
or weakening of Indian rupee against USD, Euro, JPY, etc. on the company.

 b) Credit risk   

   Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, 
loans & advances, cash & cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions.   

   Cash and cash equivalents and Deposits with banks - The company has banking operations with HDFC Bank and Axis Bank 
which are scheduled banks. These banks have high credit rating and risk of default with these banks is considered to be 
insignificant. Deposits are kept under Corporate Linked Term Deposit scheme of banks.   

  Exposure to credit risk - Refer Note 4   

 c) Liquidity risk   

   Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.  The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is 
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal 
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

   The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing 
facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets 
and liabilities.

   The Company’s treasury department is responsible for managing the short term and long term liquidity requirements of 
the Company.  Short term liquidity situation is reviewed daily by Treasury. The Board of directors has established policies 
to manage liquidity risk and the Company’s treasury department operates in line with such policies. Long term liquidity 
position is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken according to the 
situation.

   Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period 
of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations, this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that 
cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.   

27 Capital management   

  The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can 
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an appropriate capital structure 
of debt and equity.   

  The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through 
prudent management of deployed funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and international financial markets so as to 
maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.   

  The Company monitors capital, using a medium term view of three to five years, on the basis of a number of financial 
ratios generally used by industry and by the rating agencies. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital 
requirements.    
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  The company takes investment decisions and decide whether or not to participate in tenders for new solar projects by 
analysing the project viability and its cash flows over its life using ratios like gearing ratio, project IRR, equity IRR, etc.

28  Information in respect of micro and small enterprises as at 31 March 2021 as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)   

Particulars As at 31 March 2021

a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:

Principal amount  -   

Interest due thereon  -   

b) Amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along-with the amount paid to 
the suppliers beyond the appointed day.

 -   

c) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been 
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 
the MSMED Act.

 -   

d) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid  -   

e) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such 
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of 
disallowances as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED Act

 -   

` Lakh

 The payment to the vendors are made as and when they are due, as per terms and conditions of respective contracts.  

29 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (CSR)   

  As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises, GOI, the 
Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made 
during the three immediately preceding financial years. The company is yet commence the commercial operations contributing 
to generate profits.   

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Vishal Garg)
Head of Finance

(Mohit Bhargava)
Chief Executive Officer

(Aditya Dar)
Director

(DIN 08079013)

These are the notes referred to in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss

For  KLC & CO.          
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 002435N  
   
(CA. Gaurav Chhabra)  
Partner   
Membership No. 510118

 (C K Mondol)
Chairman

(DIN 08535016)

Place: New Delhi

Dated: 24 May, 2021
Digitally signed by signatories
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To,
The Members of NTPC Renewable Energy Limited
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements 
of NTPC Renewable Energy Ltd (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2021, and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the period commencing from 07 October 
2020 to 31 March 2021, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein 
after referred to as “standalone Ind AS financial statements”)

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind 
AS financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial 
position) of the Company as at 31 March, 2021, and its profit 
or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive 
income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the period 
ended on that date.

Basis of opinion: 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with 
Governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 with respect to the preparation of these separate Ind 
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Independent Auditor’s Report

Rules, 2015 as amended. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements, that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, the 
Board of directors is responsible for assessing the company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the 
company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurances about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect material misstatements when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decision of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•  Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risks of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentation, or the override of internal control.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system 
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
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and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or condition that may cast 
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statement 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirement regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone 
Ind AS financial statement based on our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in 
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, and on the basis of such 
checks of the books and records of the Company as we 
considered appropriate and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we give in “Annexure A” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the said Order.

2.  We are enclosing our report in terms of section 143(5) 
of the Act, on the basis of such checks of the books and 
records of the company as we considered appropriate 
and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, in the “Annexure B” on the directions and sub-
directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General 
of India.

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books;

(c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement 
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial 
statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended;

(e)  Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification 
No. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of sub-
section (2) of Section 164 of the Act are not applicable to 
the Company;

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate report in “Annexure C” to this report;

(g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

 i.  The Company has no pending litigation. Accordingly, 
there is no contingent liability as has been disclosed in 
Note 23 to the financial statements.

 ii.  The Company has no long term contract including 
derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses. 

 iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

For KLC & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 002435N

(CA. Gaurav Chhabra)
Partner
Membership No. 510118

UDIN: 21510118AAAAAA9483

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 25 May, 2021

Digitally signed by signatory
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other 
Legal and Regulatory requirements’ section of our report of 
even date to the members of NTPC Renewable Energy Company 
Limited on the accounts for the period ended 31 March 2021.

(i)  The Company has  no fixed asset as at 31 March 2021, 
consequently clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not 
applicable.

(ii)  The Company has no inventory as at 31 March 2021, 
consequently clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured to any companies, firms, limited liability 
partnerships or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

  In view of the above, the clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)
(c) of the Order are not applicable.

(iv)  The Company has not granted any loans, given any 
guarantees or provided any security as envisaged under 
Section 185 of the Act, or made any investment during the 
year as envisaged under Section 186 of the Act. 

  In view of the above, clause 3(iv) of the order is not 
applicable.

(v)  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 
deposits under Section 73 to 76 and under any relevant 
provision of the Act from the pubic during the year. 

  Hence the provision of clause 3(v) of the order is not 
applicable to the company.

(vi)  Provisions for maintenance of Cost records under section 
148(1) of the Companies Act 2013, are not applicable to 
the company. 

(vii) (a)  According to the information and explanation given 
to us, the company has been regularly depositing with 
the appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory 
dues in conformation with clause 3(vii) of the Order.

 (b)  The company does not appear to have any disputes 
pending with any of the tax authorities. 

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or 
borrowings to a financial institution, Bank, government or 
dues for debenture holder and hence provisions of clause 
3(viii) of the Order are not applicable.

(ix)  According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial 
public offer (including debt instruments) and no term loan 
has been raised during the period and hence provisions 
of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the 
company.

(x)  According to the information and explanations given to 
us and during the course of our examination of the Books 
and Records of the Company in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have 
neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the 
company or its officers or employees, noticed or reported 
during the year nor we have been informed of such case 
by the management.

(xi)  As per Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June 2015 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government 
of India, Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to 
Government Companies. Therefore, clause 3(xi) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the 
provisions of Clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

(xiii)  The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 
177 and 188 of the Act, with respect to transactions with 
the related parties, wherever applicable. Details of the 
transactions with the related parties have been disclosed 
in the financial statements as required by the applicable 
Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv)  The Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year. Accordingly, provisions 
of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given 
to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with the directors or persons connected with 
the directors as covered under Section 192 of the Act.

(xvi)  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the Company is not required to 
be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 hence this clause is not applicable to the 
Company.

For KLC & CO.        

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 002435N

(CA. Gaurav Chhabra)

Partner

Membership No. 510118

UDIN: 21510118AAAAAA9483

Place : New Delhi

Dated :  25 May, 2021

Digitally signed by signatory
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Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 002435N
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Partner

Membership No. 510118

UDIN: 21510118AAAAAA9483

Place : New Delhi

Dated :  25 May, 2021

Digitally signed by signatory

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements’ section of our report of even date 
to the members of NTPC Renewable Energy Company Limited on the accounts for the period ended 31 March 2021

Sl 
No.

Direction / Sub-direction u/s 143(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013

Auditor’s reply on action taken on the directions Impact on the 
Financial Statement

1. Whether the Company has system in place 
to process all the accounting transactions 
through IT system? If yes, the implications 
of processing of accounting transactions 
outside IT system on the integrity of 
the accounts along with the financial 
implications, if any, may be stated.

As per the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has a system in place to process 
all the accounting transactions through IT system. 
SAP-ERP has been implemented.
Based on the audit procedure carried out and as 
per the information and explanations given to us, 
no accounting transactions have been processed/
carried outside the IT system. Accordingly, there 
are no implications on the integrity of the accounts.

Not Applicable

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an 
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of 
debts / loans / interest etc made by a lender 
to the company due to the company’s 
inability to repay the loan? If yes, financial 
impact may be stated.

Based on the audit procedures carried out and as 
per the information and explanations given to us, 
there was no restructuring of any loans or cases 
of waiver/write off of debts/ loans/ interest etc.

Not Applicable

3. Whether funds received/receivable for 
specific schemes from Central /State 
agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its term and conditions? List 
the cases of deviation.

No Fund has been received or receivable from 
Central/State agencies during the period of Audit.

Not Applicable

For  KLC & CO.        
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 002435N

(CA. Gaurav Chhabra)
Partner
Membership No. 510118

UDIN: 21510118AAAAAA9483

Place : New Delhi
Dated :  25 May, 2021

Digitally signed by signatory
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Annexure C to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on other 
Legal and Regulatory requirements’ section of our report of 
even date to the members of NTPC Renewable Energy Company 
Limited on the accounts for the period ended 31 March 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements of NTPC Renewable Energy Company 
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2021 in conjunction 
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company 
for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements based on the internal controls over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over financial reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
financial reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial control 
system with reference to financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial control 
with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial control with reference to 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system 
with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference 
to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control 
with reference to financial statements  includes those policies 
and  procedures  that  (1)  pertain  to  the  maintenance  of  
records  that,  in  reasonable  detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance  regarding  prevention  or  timely  
detection  of  unauthorized  acquisition,  use,  or disposition of 
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control with reference to financial statements 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as 
at 31 March 2021, based on the internal controls over financial 
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to financial statements based on the internal controls over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over financial reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
financial reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial control 
system with reference to financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial control 
with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial control with reference to 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system 
with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference 
to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control 
with reference to financial statements  includes those policies 
and  procedures  that  (1)  pertain  to  the  maintenance  of  
records  that,  in  reasonable  detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance  regarding  prevention  or  timely  
detection  of  unauthorized  acquisition,  use,  or disposition of 
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control with reference to financial statements 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as 
at 31 March 2021, based on the internal controls over financial 
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reporting criteria established by the Company considering the components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For KLC & CO.        

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 002435N

(CA. Gaurav Chhabra)

Partner
Membership No. 510118
UDIN: 21510118AAAAAA9483

Place : New Delhi

Dated :  25 May, 2021

Digitally signed by signatory

NTPC REL TEAM 2020
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